
To: Local 918 IBT Trustee Eugene Maney 
From: Members of the Independent Review Board 
Subject: Proposed Charges Against Local 918 Officers Daniel 

Lombardozzi, Roger Immerglick, Jasper Cumella, Louise 
Davis, William Dennehy, Yetkin Kurulgan, and David 
Lofton 

Date: February 19, 1998 

I. RECOMMENDATION 
The Independent Review Board ("IRB") refers the below 

report to the Local 918 IBT Trustee recommending the initiation of 
charges against Local 918 Officers Daniel Lombardozzi 
("Lombardozzi"), Roger Immerglick ("Immerglick"), Jasper Cumella 
("Cumella"), Louise Davis ("Davis"), William Dennehy ("Dennehy"), 
Yetkin Kurulgan ("Kurulgan"), and David Lofton ("Lofton"). These 
charges arise from conduct of the Executive Board members after the 
IRB made its Trusteeship Recommendation to the IBT concerning Local 
918 on September 16, 1997. 

Based upon investigation, it appears that on or about 
September 30, 1997, at a time when they had not reviewed the IBT 
reasons for imposing a Trusteeship over Local 918, these officers 
breached their fiduciary duties to the members, embezzled Local 
Union funds and brought reproach upon the IBT when they authorized 
the transfer of $25,000 in Local Union funds to pay legal fees to 
resist the IBT's action upon the IRB recommendation to place Local 
918 in trusteeship, in violation of Article XXII, Section 2(b), 
Article XIX, Sections 7(b)(1), (2) and (3) and Article XIX, Section 
9 of the IBT Constitution. 



II. INTRODUCTION 
Local 918 represents auto mechanics, warehousemen, gas 

station, printer and vitamin company workers in the New York 
metropolitan area. It has its offices at 2137-2147 Utica Avenue, 
Brooklyn, New York 11234. According to Form LM-2s the Local filed, 
Local 918 had approximately 1,080 members in December 1996 and 
1,355 members in 1995. (Exs. 1, 2). In 1997, the Executive Board 
consisted of Daniel Lombardozzi, President; Roger Immerglick, 
Secretary-Treasurer; Jasper Cumella, Vice President; Louise Davis, 
Recording Secretary; and William Dennehy, Yetkin Kurulgan and David 
Lofton, Trustees. (Ex. 3). Prior Independent Administrator 
disciplinary action in this Local found in 1991 that George 
Lombardozzi, the Local's then Secretary Treasurer, associated with 
members of the Gambino Organized Crime family. 

A. Daniel Lombardozzi 
Daniel Lombardozzi became a member of Local 918 in 1978 

when he became an employee of the Local 918 Funds. Lombardozzi 
served as the Recording Secretary of Local 918 for a short period 
of time prior to 1986. In 1986 he was appointed President of Local 
918. The President is the principal officer position at Local 918. 
In 1987, Lombardozzi was elected President of Local 918, and held 
that position until October 3, 1997, when the IBT-appointed Trustee 
removed him. (Ex. 4). 

B. Roger Immerglick 
Roger Immerglick has been a member of the IBT and Local 

918 since 1986. Shortly after joining the IBT, Immerglick became 



a Business Agent of Local 918. In 1991, Lombardozzi appointed him 
to the position of Secretary-Treasurer. Immerglick was elected 
Secretary-Treasurer in 1993 and was Secretary-Treasurer until 
October 3, 1997, when the IBT appointed Trustee removed him. (Ex. 
5). 

C. Jasper cumella 
Jasper Cumella has been a member of the IBT since 

September, 1991. Lombardozzi appointed Cumella to Recording 
Secretary in 1993. He was elected to that position later that 
year. Cumella served as Recording Secretary of Local 918 until 
September 1994 when he was appointed Vice President of Local 918. 
Cumella was elected Vice President in an uncontested election in 
1996, and held that position until October 3, 1997, when the IBT 
appointed Trustee removed him. (Ex. 6). 

D. Louisa Davis 
Louise Davis has been an IBT member since 1964, and Local 

918 employee since 1964. Davis had been the office manager of 
Local 918 for almost thirty years. In 1994, Lombardozzi appointed 
her to the position of Recording Secretary. Davis was elected the 
Recording Secretary of Local 918 in 1996 in an uncontested 
election, and served in that position until October 3, 1997, when 
the IBT appointed Trustee removed her. (Ex. 7). 

E. William Dennehy, Yetkin Kurulgan and David Lofton 
William Dennehy, Yetkin Kurulgan and David Lofton were 

the Trustees of Local 918 when the Trusteeship was imposed. 
Lombardozzi appointed Dennehy as a Local 918 Trustee on December 7, 



1993 (Ex. 8), Kurulgan on June 6, 1995 (Ex. 1) and Lofton on June 
22, 1993. (Ex. 8). They were removed by the IBT Trustee on October 
3, 1997. 
III. JURISDICTION 

Pursuant to .article XIX, Section 14(c)(1) and Article VI, 
Section 5 (b) of the IBT Constitution, this disciplinary matter is 
within the jurisdiction of the Local 918 Trustee. 
IV. INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS 

A. The Trusteeship Recommendation 
On September 16, 1997, the IRB issued its Trusteeship 

Recommendation Concerning Local 918 ("Trusteeship Report") to the 
IBT. (Ex. 9). The Trusteeship Report indicated, inter alia, that 
the Local Executive Board had failed to adopt and operate under 
approved Bylaws as the IBT Constitution required; that the Local 
failed to regularly hold general membership meetings at which a 
quorum of fifteen members was met; that the Executive Board entered 
into improper financial arrangements, and had granted themselves 
salary increases, bonuses and benefits without having obtained 
authorization from the members; and that the Local's officers 
negotiated sham collective bargaining agreements with employers who 
were permitted to be Local members. (Id. at 8-32). The IRB 
recommended the imposition of a Trusteeship over Local 918 and 
required the General President ("the General President") to report 
to the IRB any actions taken or planned within two weeks. (Ex. 
10). 



B. Appointment of th* IBT Trust** 
On September 30, 1997, the General President appointed 

Eugene Maney ("Maney") as Temporary Trustee over Local 918 
effective October 2, 1997. (Ex. 11). On October 1, 1997, the 
General President notified the officers of Local 918 that he had 
imposed a Temporary Trusteeship over Local 918. (Ex. 12). 

At the time the General President imposed this Trusteeship, 
Lombardozzi was the President and principal officer of Local 918, 
Cumella the Vice President, Immerglick the Secretary Treasurer, 
Davis the Recording Secretary, William Dennehy, Yetkin Kurulgan and 
David Lofton the trustees of Local 918. (Exs. 3,4). Through 
testimony and record requests the Local officers were aware of the 
IRB investigation and the issues involved. On September 29, 1997, 
an attorney, Philip C. Landrigan ("Landrigan"), submitted a 
proposed retainer agreement to the Executive Board. (Ex. 13). On 
September 30, 1997, at a Special Meeting of the Executive Board the 
Executive Board members unanimously voted to retain counsel 
concerning matters relating to, inter alia, the imposition of a 
possible trusteeship, and to hire a private security guard service. 
(Ex. 14). On October 1, 1997, Lombardozzi and Immerglick signed a 
retainer check in the amount of twenty five thousand ($25,000.00) 
dollars drawn on the Local's general fund account of Local 918 and 
payable to Landrigan. (Ex. 15). On October 2, 1997, the officers 
of Local 918 refused Maney, the IBT appointed Trustee, access to 
the premises. (Ex. 16). On October 2, 1997, Local 918 through the 
displaced officers and their attorney Landrigan filed an action in 



the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New 
York seeking a temporary restraining order enjoining the imposition 
of the trusteeship. (Ex. 17) . On October 3, 1997, the IBT 
obtained an order to show cause in the United States District Court 
for the Southern District of New York enjoining Local 918 and its 
officers from interfering with the conduct of the Temporary Trustee 
and from litigating the case in any forum other than the Southern 
District of New York. (Ex. 18). On October 14, 1997, after a 
hearing, District Judge David N. Edelstein issued an Opinion and 
Order granting the application of the IBT for a preliminary 
injunction enjoining Local 918 and its officers from taking any 
steps to resist the imposition of an emergency trusteeship. (Ex. 
19). Judge Edelstein found that "[t]he IRB Report, Exhibits and 
accompanying letter provided Carey [the General President] with a 
sufficient basis to believe in good faith that an emergency 
situation existed at Local 918 requiring the immediate imposition 
of a trusteeship." (Id. at 10)(citation omitted). 

1. Local $18 Executive Board Members Embezzled 
Local Union Funds to Retain Counsel 

The expenditure of $25,000 in Local funds to retain new 
counsel to combat an anticipated IRB trusteeship recommendation was 
not in the interests of the members. The Local 918 Executive Board 
acted prior to reviewing the basis for the imposition of the 
trusteeship. The Executive Board members had not received the 
Trusteeship Report prior to their retention of counsel and the 
transfer of funds pursuant to that retention. The Board's decision 
to retain counsel and transfer funds for that purpose was not based 



upon an informed decision that such an arrangement was in the 
interests of the members of Local 918. Rather, it was spent to 
preserve and retain the Executive Board's control of the Local 
Union in violation of the IBT Constitution. 

As union officers, the Executive Board members are 
fiduciaries required to ensure that all union funds are used for 
the benefit of the members. See 29 U.S.C. S 501(a); United States 
v. Local 560. 561 F. Sup. 279, 335 (D.N.J. 1984) (union officers 
hold "positions of trust" and accordingly must administer the 
union's funds and property with "highest standards of 
responsibility and ethical conduct...."), aff'd, 780 F.2d 267 (3d 
Cir. 1985), cert, denied. 475 U.S. 1140 (1986); United States v. 
IBT TSalvatorel. 754 F. Sup. 333, 339 (S.D.N.Y. 1990); 
Investigations Officer v. Morris. Decision of the Independent 
Administrator at 26 (May 22, 1991)("The Local's assets belong to 
the Local's members. The Local's officers are mere trustees of 
those assets."), aff'd, United States v. IBT, 777 F. Sup. 1123 
(S.D.N.Y. 1991), aff'd. Docket Nos. 92-6056, 92-6058, 92-6089, slip 
op. (2d Cir. September 15, 1992) 

In order to establish a charge of embezzlement, it must 
be proven that the respondents acted with fraudulent intent to 
deprive the Local Union of its funds. Investigations Officer v. 
Ross. Decision of the Independent Administrator at 19-20 (March 1, 
1993) (citations omitted), aff'd. United States v. IBT. 88 Civ. 4486 
(DNE), slip op. (S.D.N.Y. July 13, 1993); Investigations Officer v. 
Caldwell. Decision of the Independent Administrator at 7 (February 



9, 1993) (authorizing improper payment of officers' legal fees 
constituted embezzlement), aff'd. United States v. IBT. 88 Civ. 
4486 (DNE), slip op. (S.D.N.Y. September 2, 1993). Here, the 
transfer of funds from the general fund was not authorized by the 
members of Local 918 and provided no benefit to the members. The 
Local had operated without approved Bylaws for more than three 
decades and in the last nine years had held only eight general 
membership meetings at which a quorum was present. 

"Authorization from and benefit to the union are the 
controlling lodestars to determine whether a defendant acted with 
the fraudulent intent to deprive the union of its money." United 
States v. Butler. 954 F.2d 114, 118 (2d Cir. 1992). The Executive 
Board could not decide the expenditure of $25,000.00 in Local funds 
for this purpose was in the interests of its members without 
reviewing the Trusteeship Report. See United States v. Ladmer, 429 
F. Supp. 1231, 1243 (E.D.N.Y. 1977)("formal resolutions cannot 
authorize the expenditure of the funds of labor organizations where 
the expenditures are not for union benefit but are for the personal 
benefit of the recipients.") 

In a prosecution for embezzlement under Title 29, United 
States Code, Section 501(c), the Fourth Circuit stated that: 

It bears repeating that the conversion of 
property that lies at the core of embezzlement 
must be made without the permission of the owner, 
and contrary to the wishes of the owner. In 
the context of §501(c), the owner of the 
property is the union itself - its collective 
membership - not individual union officials 
who are not vested with power to dissipate 
union funds in the manner currently before 
the court . . . .The permission of the union 
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